[bookmark: _GoBack]Attachment A: Letter of Intent to Bid on Hampden County WIOA Youth Provider Request for Proposals

Submit this letter to the MassHire Hampden County Workforce Board by 5:00pm EST on March 20, 2026, to RFP@masshirehcwb.com. Submission of a letter of intent is mandatory for a proposal to be considered.

Date Submitted:	 	

Submitting for (Please Check):
 	In School	 	Out of School	 	BOTH (Separate proposals required)

Name of Lead Organization:   	                                                                                                                Address:	 	

Contact Person:	 			 Telephone:	 	E-mail:  	

[bookmark: _Toc222837145]Collaborating Organizations (if any):

Organization Name:	 	

Organization Name:	 	

Organization Name:	 	

Organization Name:	 	

Organization Name:	 	

Attachment B: Cover Page

	Legal Name of Applicant Agency
	

	Number of Years in Business
	

	FEIN Number
	

	DUNS Number
	

	

Type of Organization (check all that apply)
	 	 Institution of higher education	 	Private for Profit
 	 Non-traditional public school	 	Not-for-Profit
 	 Consortium of public agencies	 	Government Agency
 	 Community organization	 	Business
 	 Labor organization	 	Business association

	Addresses of Service Location – This is the location where the services described in this application will be provided.
	Addresses:

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	Name
	

	Principal of Agency – CEO/Executive Director/President
	Title
	

	
	Address
	

	
	Email Address
	

	
	Phone
	

	
	Name
	

	Programmatic Contact Person
	Title
	

	
	Address
	

	
	Email Address
	

	
	Phone
	

	
	Name
	
	

	Fiscal Contact Person
	Title
	
	

	
	Email Address
	
	

	
	Phone
	
	

	Total Amount Requested	Comment by Steve Trueman: Should we have them list the number served?
	$
	
	

	Total Youth To Be Served
	
	
	






[bookmark: _bookmark0][bookmark: _bookmark1][bookmark: _Toc160197452][bookmark: _Toc222837147]Attachment C: PROPOSAL CHECKLIST 
 
Emailed/Electronic Submission instructions noted below to be sent to rfp@masshirehcwb.com by 12:00 NOON April 15, 2026.  
Proposal package includes (minimum threshold requirements for acceptance):   
 
One (1) combined PDF document containing:     
____  Signed/E-Signed Application Cover Sheet (Attachment B) 
_____Proposal Summary Sheet (Attachment D1 or D2)
____  Response to Proposal Narrative Questions (Attachment J)
____  FY 27 WIOA Cost Worksheet (All Tabs) 
____  WIOA Youth Budget FY27 Template (All Tabs)  	
 
One (1) combined PDF document containing: 
  ____  Job Descriptions 
  ____  Organizational Chart 
  ____  Signed/ E-Signed Proposal Checklist (Attachment C) 
	 ____   Certification Regarding Debarment( Attachment H) 
 ____   Anti-Lobbying Certification (Attachment G)
  ____  Board Diversity Information (Attachment I)
____    Fiscal Questionnaire (Attachment F) 
	 ____   Letter of Commitment from Financial Subcontractor(s), if applicable (Attachment E) 
	 ____   Letter documenting Federally-Approved Indirect Cost rate, if applicable   
One (1) PDF document containing: 
____    Most Recent Audited Financial Statements or Single Audit if received > $750k in Federal Awards 

____One (1) Electronic excel copy of WIOA Youth Budget FY 27 Template 
____One (1) Electronic excel copy of FY 27 WIOA Cost Worksheets.

In addition, the proposal package: 
____  Adheres to the 25 page limit for the proposal narrative 
	 ____  Includes no other appendices or exhibits except those specifically requested in this RFP 

I certify that the above requirements are met. 
 
                                                                                               _________________ 
Authorized Signature 	Date 

	DO NOT WRITE IN SPACE BELOW      FOR USE BY MHHCWB STAFF 

	This proposal _______meets
                     ________does not meet minimum threshold requirements.
Staff comments:
Authorized Staff Signature_______________________________ Date_______________
	

	
	__________________________________________
	


 
 

Attachment D1: In-School Proposal Summary Sheet

RFP TITLE: WIOA IN SCHOOL Youth -- Hampden County	Fiscal Year 2027

· [bookmark: _Toc222837148]PROPOSAL SUMMARY SHEET ▪

NAME OF ORGANIZATION: 	_ 	

LOCATION OF TRAINING:	 	

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 	_ 	





EDUCATION CLASSES	HOURS/WEEK	WORK EXP. & OTHER SRVCS.	HOURS/WEEK






OTHER SERVICES ACTIVITIES







TOTAL CLASS HOURS PER WEEK PER PARTICIPANT:	 	                TOTAL WEEKS OF PROGRAMMING:	 	
NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS:	 	

SCHEDULE: (Please provide both Summer Schedule and Year-Round Schedule Below - if different)

Full Year Schedule:

START DATE: 	END DATE: 	DAYS (Circle):  M	T   W  Th  F	TIME:   	

Summer Schedule: (If different from above)

START DATE: 	END DATE: 	DAYS (Circle):  M	T   W  Th  F	TIME:   	


	
PROPOSED ENROLLMENTS and COMPLETIONS


TOTAL PROJECTED ENROLLMENTS:
TOTAL PROJECTED COMPLETERS BY 6/30/27:
	
TOTAL

 	
______
	
PERCENT OF TOTAL

  100%	

	
PROPOSED OUTCOMES
(Graduates may count in more than one category)
	
	
PERCENT OF TOTAL
COMPLETERS

	A) Entered Employment/Edu/Training
	

	


	B) Employment/Edu/Training/Retention
	

	


	C) Credential Rate
	

	


	D) OTHER (None of the above)
	

	




Attachment D2: Out-of-School Proposal Summary Sheet

RFP TITLE:   WIOA OUT OF SCHOOL Youth -- Hampden County	Fiscal Year 2027

· [bookmark: _Toc222837149]PROPOSAL SUMMARY SHEET ▪

NAME OF ORGANIZATION: 	_ 	

LOCATION OF TRAINING:	 	

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 	_ 	





EDUCATION CLASSES	HOURS/WEEK	WORK EXP. & OTHER SRVCS.	HOURS/WEEK






OTHER SERVICES ACTIVITIES






TOTAL CLASS HOURS PER WEEK PER PARTICIPANT:	 	                TOTAL WEEKS OF PROGRAMMING:	 	
NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS:	 	

SCHEDULE: (Please provide both Summer Schedule and Year-Round Schedule Below - if different)

Full Year Schedule:

START DATE: 	END DATE: 		DAYS (Circle):  M	T   W Th	F	TIME:   	

Summer Schedule: (If different from above)

START DATE: 	END DATE: 		DAYS (Circle):  M	T   W  Th  F	TIME:   	












	
PROPOSED ENROLLMENTS and COMPLETIONS
	

TOTAL
	
PERCENT OF TOTAL

	
TOTAL PROJECTED ENROLLMENTS:
TOTAL PROJECTED COMPLETERS BY 6/30/27:
	
 	
______
	
  100%	

	
PROPOSED OUTCOMES
(Graduates may count in more than one category)
	
	
PERCENT OF TOTAL
COMPLETERS

	E) Entered Employment/Edu/Training
	

	


	F) Employment/Edu/Training/Retention
	

	


	G) Credential Rate
	

	


	H) OTHER (None of the above)
	

	




Attachment E: Partnership Form


	Name of Partner Organization
	Role of Partner Organization
	Primary Contact name, email, phone, and address at Partner Organization.

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	




Attachment F: Fiscal Questionnaire


	Is the agency a not-for-profit entity?
	
 	Yes
	
 	 No

	Is the agency subject to the A-133 Single Audit requirement
	
 	Yes
	
 	 No

	Does the agency do its own accounting? If no, indicate the name and address of the accounting firm below.
	    __Yes
	_ _ No

	Name:

	Address:

	Contact Person:

	Phone Number:

	

	Does the agency have a current financial procedures manual?
	_ _ Yes
	 	No

	If yes, how often is it reviewed and updated?
	

	Does the agency have a written cost allocation plan? If yes, please submit
	    __ Yes
	 	No

	Does the agency have an approved Indirect Cost Rate by a cognizant agency? If yes, please submit
	    __ Yes
	 	No

	Does the agency have a conflict of interest policy?
	 	Yes
	 	No

	How often is a trial balance prepared?
	

	

	Accounting System Disbursements/Reconciliation

	Are all disbursements made by check?
	    _ Yes
	_ No

	Are all checks pre-numbered?
	    _ Yes
	 	No

	
Who is authorized to sign checks? Please indicate name and title(s).
	

	How often is the bank reconciliation prepared?
	

	

	Please provide the name and length of engagement.

	Name:

	Length of Engagement:



Attachment G: Certificate of Lobbying Activities

Certification Regarding Lobbying 
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract; the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 
(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions. 
 
(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
 This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Contractor 	 	 	 	 	 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Certifying Official  	 	Signature 
 
________________________ 
Date  


Attachment H: Certificate Regarding Debarment, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
[bookmark: _Hlk222836810]Certification Regarding 
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion 
Lower Tier Covered Transactions 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 
Suspension, 34 CFR Part 85, Section 85.510, Participants' responsibilities.  The regulations were published as Part VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal Register (pages 19160-19211).  Copies of the regulations may be obtained by the contacting the person to which this proposal is submitted. 
 
(1) The prospective lower tier participants certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 
 
(2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
 
             ________________________________________________________________ 
                   Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
             ________________________________________________________________ 
                   Signature                                                                         Date 


[bookmark: _Toc160197473][bookmark: _Toc222837151][bookmark: _Hlk222838030]ATTACHMENT I
 
[bookmark: _Toc160197474][bookmark: _Toc222837152]BOARD OF GOVERNANCE BOARD MEMBERS 
 
NAME 	GENDER/RACE/ETHNICITY         _ 	           DATE APPOINTED 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
[bookmark: _Toc222837153]______________________________________________________________________________


ATTACHMENT J
			PROGRAM NARRATIVE
 
  
 
Organizational Structure/Capacity, and Background (20 points)

1. Briefly describe your organization and its experience with the provision of education and/or training services to the eligible youth population.
2. Indicate the particular youth service backgrounds and qualifications of staff that your agency will assign to provide the services under this RFP.
3. Describe how your agency’s staff development policies and activities will ensure that the staff
4. Working on this project have the necessary qualifications to meet youth enrollee needs.
5. MHHCWB strives to support organizations that place a high value on employee retention; please
6. Provide your organization’s turnover rates, salary bands, and a summary of benefits.
7. Explain how your mission and other programs align with this funding opportunity.
8. Describe program strategies or approaches that demonstrate innovative, flexible, or creative in- service delivery.
9. Describe your experience in working with special populations (i.e., individuals with disabilities, individuals with basic skills deficiency, limited English speakers, highly educated immigrants, veterans, individuals with criminal backgrounds, and recipients of public assistance). 
10. Describe your experience working with youth with barriers to employment and other community partners to ensure access to and provide services promptly. 
11. Describe your organization’s experience in delivering trauma-informed practices to youth in the workforce setting.

Service Strategy (40 points)
Program Structure

1. Identify the number and targeted population of youth for your program. Provide specific background information to demonstrate that there are sufficient numbers in this target population to achieve your program’s proposed enrollment goal.
2. For In-School programs, please indicate what grade(s) the program will be focused on. Include hours of program activities and staffing structure.
3. For Out-of-School programs, identify the staffing structure and the weekly schedule for the project.
4. Will the proposed services be in a new program or will they be integrated into an existing program that your agency is already operating?
5. Identify the specific locations where each component will be provided, including accessibility by public transportation. Describe the program space(s). Indicate whether summer activities will be different from year-round activities and if so, how.

Recruitment and Outreach (Marketing)
1. Describe your recruitment and outreach plan to recruit the eligible youth population, including what transportation assistance will be provided for specialized services outside of the Hampden County area, if necessary, the organizations and audiences with which you will communicate, and the tools and methods you will use. Describe potential challenges that may arise in engaging and enrolling the youth population.
2. Indicate how your project will incorporate any of the Hampden County priority areas initiatives outlined at the beginning of the RFP.

Comprehensive Assessment
1. Explain your approach to providing customer-centered services, including your organization’s
2. trauma-informed practices.
3. Describe how participant strengths and needs will be assessed, including formal and informal assessments.
4. Describe how your assessment process provides an objective assessment of each youth participant and includes a review of academic and occupational skills levels, service needs, and strengths to build individual service strategies for each youth.
5. Describe the target population’s barriers to accessing employment and education services. How will the proposed program address those barriers? Describe how supportive service needs will be identified and administered throughout the program duration.

Career Planning and Case Management
1. Describe the process for developing and managing an individual service strategy plan, including goal progress tracking and how modifications will be made when necessary. The individual service strategy plan should include short-term and long-term employment, educational, and personal goals.
2. Discuss your methods of instruction for job readiness and soft skills development. Discuss how you will develop goals and measure individual achievements in each area.
3. Describe your approach to developing work experience opportunities that would align with the
4. Youth participants’ career goals and aspirations are outlined in the individual service strategy plan.
5. How will the program educate participants about a range of occupations and career pathways in a target industry and the required experience, education, and training necessary for such occupations?

Data Management
 
1. Describe how your organization securely manages participant information, including participant documents and electronic files.
2. Identify the staff involved in the management of participant data.
3. What is the organization’s capacity to submit participant information, participant basic information, enrollment, career plans, case notes, activities, services rendered, and outcomes achieved? Describe your organization’s quality assurance process to ensure the quality, accuracy, and timeliness of data submission.

Employer and Sector-Based Partnerships
1. Describe your employer engagement strategies, including current relationships with businesses, and how they will be leveraged to create work experience opportunities for youth.
2. Describe how your employer engagement strategies will align with businesses’ workforce needs
and priorities in the Hampden County region.

Career Pathways:
1. Describe your proposed career pathway(s) in Hampden County region.
2. Identify the occupation(s) at the center of the proposed career pathway. Include contextualized education or occupational training, including partnerships, tools, or resources will be utilized in Hampden County.
3. Describe the labor market information that supports the selected career pathway(s)
4. Describe sector-based partnerships that include a wide range of stakeholders, including but not limited to employers, education partners, and community-based organizations.


Required WIOA Program Elements:
In order to provide youth with access to a broad range of services, or the required 14 WIOA Youth elements, WIOA necessitates forming a robust system of services and providers. Please describe how the program will provide, either in-house, through collaboration, or through referral mechanisms, access to each of the 14 WIOA service elements, including how the program will support participants in achieving skills gain.

Please answer the following questions regarding your organization’s approach in delivering the required WIOA program elements:
1. Tutoring, study skills training, instruction, and dropout prevention: Describe how participants will be supported to complete academic and occupational credentials.
2. Alternative secondary school services or dropout recovery services: Describe academic services that will be made available to youth who have not attained a High School diploma or equivalent.
3. Paid and unpaid work experience: Describe what paid and unpaid work experiences will be offered through the program. Proposed work experiences should consider the range of skills and interests of the participants.
4. Occupational skills training: Identify the main Industry Recognized Credential(s) and the corresponding occupational skills training, including any occupational skills training partners.
5. Education concurrently w/workforce preparation: Describe any integrated education programming that occurs concurrently and contextually with workforce preparation.
6. Leadership development: Describe leadership opportunities that encourage responsibility, confidence, employability, self-determination, and other positive social behaviors.
7. Supportive Services: Describe how your organization will identify participant support services needs, submit requests, and ensure proper expenditure of funds.
8. Adult Mentoring (12-month min): Describe your approach to mentor recruitment, especially in Hampden County Priority Areas.
9. Follow-Up Services (12 Months): How will you maintain follow-up contact and assist the youth who leave your program, both the youth who drop out of the program as well as the successful program graduates?
10. Comprehensive Guidance and Counseling: Describe how youth participants will be connected to specialized individual counseling, including drug and alcohol abuse and mental health counseling.
11. Financial Literacy Education: Describe the financial literacy services provided to participants, including but not limited to budgeting, setting financial goals, savings, credit, and overcoming debt.
12. Entrepreneurial Skills Training: Describe the entrepreneurial program services available related to the basics of starting a small business. Services may include, but are not limited to, the entrepreneurial mindset, critical problem solving, business plan development, project management, and marketing.
13. Labor market Services: Explain how Hampden County and Massachusetts labor market data will be utilized in the development of career plans. Explain your approach to working with industry sectors, including Hampden County Priority areas and STEM-related fields.
14. Post-secondary preparation and transition activities: Describe the transition support that will be provided to the participants upon training or school graduation. Describe the post-secondary preparation activities that will be provided.

Past Performance & Outcomes (20 points)

WIOA has specific outcomes designated for its Youth programs, primarily placement into employment or post-secondary education or training, enhanced by educational attainments. These have been outlined on the preceding pages of this RFP.

For organizations that have previously received WIOA Youth funds:

Referring to these performance measures, describe your agency’s previous performance, over
the past two years, with the target youth group.
· Share what changes or improvements your organization would implement if selected to receive WIOA youth funds again.

For organizations that have NOT previously received WIOA Youth funds:
Describe your agency’s performance managing similar youth programming as closely as possible
to these measures: education, employment, and work readiness preparation. Include
supporting data that demonstrates your organization’s success and ability to deliver results.

For all applicants:
1. Describe your organization’s previous experience administering federal, state, and private
2. grants.
3. Explain your organization’s approach to meeting deadlines and addressing any past compliance
4. Challenges, if applicable
5. Detail the steps your organization has taken to enhance program efficiency, ensure compliance, and support continuous improvement

Financial Structure and Fiscal Plan (20 points)

1. Describe the administrative and financial management capabilities of the
organization. What are the qualifications of the organization’s key program management and
financial staff, and to what extent will they be involved with this project?
2. Provide the organization’s total annual budget amount and list the top five funding sources for the current fiscal year, including funder, amount, and project funded. Estimate what percentage of your overall organization’s work would be represented by this contract?
3. If you are proposing a subcontracting model, do you have experience in managing subcontracts for services, including monitoring of subcontractors? How do you ensure proper fiscal oversight and accountability of subcontractors?
4. Describe your experience with cost reimbursement contracts. Describe how you will financially support the costs of doing business until an invoice can be submitted and paid. How will you provide and fund the start-up costs of the program? (Start-up costs are allowable with WIOA funds, although additional funds may be provided by the bidder.)
5. Describe the agency’s payroll system and accounting software, including internal controls for accuracy and validity. What is the method for documenting employee time and expenses?
6. If the entity is for-profit, identify the profit percentage built into the proposed budget, and describe the risk and other factors taken into consideration to arrive at this percentage.
7. Profits earned will be subject to negotiations as detailed under Section 3.D.
8. Leveraged funds are not required. However, we are interested in whether the bidder has ideas for securing additional funds to support WIOA Youth services or has additional funds internally that can be utilized for these services. If so, please describe it here. These funds can include cash contributions, staff effort, space, fee-for-service, or other revenue generation, and in-kind contributions. In answering, list each source of leveraged resources, the dollar value, and the function of each leveraged resource, and whether the funds are secured, pending, anticipated, or ideas.
9. Describe the respondent’s resource development experience and capacity to access various sources of funding to operate high-quality programs.


